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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP II LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The Directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for Aberdeen Infrastructure GP Il
Limited (the "Company™) for the year ended 31 December 2018,

The Company qualifies as a small company In accordance with Sections 381-382 of the Companies Act 2006
(the "Act") and the Report of the Directors has therefore been prepared taking into conskleration the provisions
of Part 15 of the Act. The Company has taken advantage of the exemptions available to small sized entities as
defined in the Act.

In preparing this report, the Directors have taken advantage of the small companies exemption provided by
Section 41B of the Act and have not prepared a strategic report.

Principal activity

The Company's principal activity during the year was to act as General Partner to Aberdeen Infrastructure
Partners [I LP ("AIP 11 LP" or the "Fund"). The Company remains committed to the business of the Fund and
will continue to act as General Partner in the future. The Company is a subsidiary of Standand Life Aberdeen PLC
("SLA PLC" or, together with its subsidiaries, "the Standard Life Aberdeen Group”).

Principal risk and uncertainties
SLA PLC, of which the Company is part, has an established Enterprise Risk Management framework, integrating
oversight of strategic planning, operational management of the business and internal control.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are Integrated into the principal risks of the merged
group under SLA PLC and are therefore not managed separately, Accordingly, the principal risks and
uncentainties of the Standard Life Aberdeen Group, which include those of the Company, are discussed fully in
the SLA PLC Annuat Report and Accounts which does not form part of this report.

The list below does however pravide a summary of the key risks fadng both the Company which are also
common to SLA PLC. Further detalls on each of the risks, together with how they link to our new strategy, how
they have evolved over the pericd and how they are managed can be found In the Standard Life Aberdeen
Group accounts,

The principal risks to which the Company is most specifically exposed can be categorised as foflows:

Operational nisks: IT fallure and security induding cyber risk; third party oversight; and process execution
failure,

Brexit

Recent and ongoing developments in relation to Brexit means there s continued political uncertainty over the
timetable and terms on which the UK will leave the EU. The Directors, in conjunction with the Investment
Manager, will continue to follow developments dosely and assess their implications in relation to contingency
planning. It is not currently expected that Brexit will have a material impact on the finandal results or

operations performed by the Company.

Key performance indicators

Given the straightforward nature of the business, the Directors believe that analysis using key performance
indicators is not necessary or appropriate for an understanding of the development, performance or financial
pasition of the Company,

Business review
The Company’'s total comprehensive income for the year was GBP nll (2017: GBP nil) and no dividends were
paid during the year (2017 GBP nll).

Directors
The Directors at the date of this report are as stated on page 1 and all served throughout the year, unless
otherwise stated,



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP II LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Audit information

The Directors who held office at the date of appraval of this Report of the Directors confirm that, so far as they
are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's Independent Auditor is unaware;
and each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's Independent Auditor is aware of that
information.

Independent auditor
KPMG Channet Islands Limited have indicated their willingness to continue in office, A resolution to re-appaint
the Independent Auditor will be put forward at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Statement of Directors' responsibliities in respect of the financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare finandial statements for each financial year. Under that law they
have elected to prepare the financial statements In accordance with UK acoounting standards and applicable law
(UK Generally Accepted Acoounting Practice), induding FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework .

Under company law the Directors must not approve the finandal statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that

year.
In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting polides and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financlal statements;

« assess the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
9oing corwern; and

+ use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
aperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate acoounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transactions and disdose with reasonable acouracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the finandal statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, They
are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general
responsihility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irmegularities.

By order of the Board,

d e -
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Director
Date: 18 September 2019



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP II LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Aberdesan Infrastructure GP II Limited (“the company”™) which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2018, the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year then ended and related notes, induding the accounting policies in note
2.

In our opinion the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its tesults for
the year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared In accordance with UK accounting standards, incduding FRS 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companiles Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("1SAs {(UK)"} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulflied our ethical responsibiliies under, and are
independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements Indluding the FRC Ethical Standard, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basls for cur opinion.

Going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there Is an undisdosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that
basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements, We have nothing to
report in these respects,

Directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the directors’ repart, Our opinion on the finandial statements does not cover that
report and we do not express an audit opinion thereon,

Our responsibllity is to read the directors” report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financlal statements
or our audit knowledge, Based solely on that work:

+ we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report;

+ in our opinion the information given in that report for the financial year is consistent with the fnancial
statements; and

* in our opinion that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or

the finandial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

certain disdosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from the requirement to
prepare a strategic report.

We have nothing to report in these respects,



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP II LIMITED

Directors’ rasponsibilities

As explained more fully in thelr statement set out on page 3, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfled that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they
determine is necessaty to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
apphicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatament, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinton in an auditor’s report. Reasonabie
assurance Is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
{UK) will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, indiidually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influetice the economic
decisions of users {aken on the basis of the financlal statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilties (s providled on the FRC's website at
www.frc.org. ui/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and {0 whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the company and the
company's members, as a bady, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

@ Frihmat (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Channel Islands Limited, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Glategny court, Glategny Esplanade

St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 JWR
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP 11 LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Income

Bank interest income
General Partner’s Share
Gain on forelgn exchange

Totat income

Expenses

Administration fees

Audit remuneraticn
Management fees

Other operating expenses
Professional fees

Totat expenses

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Tax

Profit on ordinary activities after tax

The notes on pages 9 to 12 form part of these finandial statements.

6

2018 2017
GBp GBP
1,668 202
660,239 650,916
661,907 651,118
10,048 12,500
5,400 5,500
646,389 638,060
70 40
- (4r982)
661,907 651,118




ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP 11 LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018
Notes
2018 2017
GBP GBP
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,828,525 1,187,821
Recelvables 4 166,171 164,215
Total current assets 1,994,696 1,352,036
Total assels 1,994,696 1,352,036
S
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capitai 6 2 2
Retained earnings - -
Total equity 2 2
Liabilities
Current liabilitles
Payables and accruals 5 1,994,694 1,352,034
Total current liabilities 1,994,694 1,352,034
Total equity and liabllities 1,994,696 1,352,036

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 18 September
2019 and slgned on its behalf by:

THY Wong
Director
Date: 18 September 2019

The notes on pages 9 to 12 form part of these financlal statements,
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP II LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Retained
Share capital earnings Total equity
GBP GBP Gap
Balance at 1 January 2017 2 - 2
Total comprehensive income for the year - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 2 - 2
Total comprehensive income for the year - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 2 - 2

The notes on pages 9 to 12 form part of these financial statements.
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP II LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is domidiled in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office is Bow Belis House, 1
Bread Street, London EC4M 9HH.

The Company’s business activities, together with expected future developments and key risks facing the
Company, are detailed in the Report of the Directors.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 18 September
2019.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless other otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
{a) Transition to FRS 101

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2018, are the first the Company have prepared in
accordance with FRS 101. The date of transition to FRS 101 for the Company is 1 January 2017. The Company
historically prepared its financial statements in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union ("IFRSs").

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under Application of Financial Reporting Requirements
100 as issued by the Financial Reporting Coundil. Accordingly, the finandal statements for year ended 31
December 2018 have been prepared In accordance with FRS 101 as issued by the Finandial Reporting Council.

Application of FRS 101, in conjunction with the equivalent disdosures being avallable in the group accounts of
SLA PLC, has allowed the Company to take advantage of various disclosure exemptions. These are presentation
of a cash-flow statement, standards not vet effective, financial instruments and transactions with group
companies.

{b) New Interpretations and amendments to existing standards that have been adopted by the
Company

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with customers’

IFRS 15 has replaced IAS 18 'Revenue’ and related interpretations. IFRS 15 provides a new five-step revenue
recognition model for determining recognition and measurement of revenue from contracts with customers. No
significant impacts to profit or net assets were identified for the Company.

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 has replaced 1AS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'. There has been no material
Impact on the Company’s financial performance or position and no comparative numbers have been adjusted
following the adoption of IFRS 9.

2.2 Going concern

The net asset position, at the time of approving the financial statements, has given a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future,
Accordingly, it continues to adopt the goling concern basis in preparing the financial statements.



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP II LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.3 Forsign currency translation

{a) Functional and presentation currency

The Board of Directors consider Pound Sterling ("GBP™) as the functional and presentation cumrency of the
Company., This Is the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underiying
transactions, events and conditions of the Company, The Company receives the majority of Its income and
expenses in GBP,

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange tates prevalling at
the date of the transaction. Foreign currency assets and liabilities, other than financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are transiated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at
the Statement of Financial Position date,

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation are induded in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

2.4 General Partner's Share / General Partner's Share receivable

In accordance with Clause 9 of the Limited Partnership Agreement (LPA) dated 19 November 2014, the
Company is entitled to receive a GPS and this shalf be allocated to the Company as a first charge on the Net
Income and Capital Gains of the Fund.

General Partner's Share ("GPS") Is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. General
Partner's Share |s initially recognised at fair vaiue and subsequentiy measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

The GPS is calculate as follows:

{i} In respect of the period commencing on the Closing date and ending on the fifth anniversary of the
Closing Date, 0.455 per cent of the Net Asset Value.

{i} In respect of the period following the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date, 0.5 per cent of the Net
Asset Value,

As per Clause 10.3 of the LPA, 12.1% of the GPS from Aberdeen Infrastructure Partners II LP ("AIP II LP™)
shall not be distributed to the Company, but shall instead be retained by AIP II LP in an interest bearing special
reserve account. Upon the achievement of certaln Fund performance hurdles specified in the LPA, on the fifth
anniversary of the closing date of AIP I1 LP, the Company shall be entitied to receive this amount in full. The
Company has not recognised the 12.1% of the GPS as at the balance sheet date as it is uncertain whether the
hurdles will be met. Any increase in the GPS will be offset by an increase in the management fees payable.

The GPS payable shall be reduced by deducting transaction fees, investment related fees, directors' fees, etc,
earned and retained by the General Partner, Investment Manager or any associates of either.

Instalments of the management fee payable for any period other than a full quarteriy period {including the first
management fee payment, which shall be payable from the Initial Clasing Date) shall be adjusted on a pro rata
basis according to the actual number of days in such periad.

2.5 Receivables

In accordance with IFRS 9, receivables are initially recognised at fair value and measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less provision for impalrment. The Company takes the
practical expedient approach to the impairment of receivables.

10



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP II LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balances that are freely available with a maturity of three months or
less. At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their
fair value.

2.7 Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are initially recognised at falr value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Payables and accruals are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expires, At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the camrying amounts of payables and
accruals approximate to their fair value,

2.8 Expenses
Expenses are recognised on an accruals basis.

Management fees represent the Company's share of the General Partner fees payable to Aberdeen Fund
Managers Limited in liey of the provision of services as the Investment Manager to the Fund. Management fees
are limited to any surplus income after all expenses have been settied.

2.9 Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income,
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years,
2.10 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Management have not used any significant accounting estimates or judgements when preparing the financiat
statements,

3. EXPENSES
3.1 Audit remuneration

Fees charged by the Company's Independent Auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts for the
year ended 31 December 2018 were GBP5,400 (2017: GBPS,400).

3.2 Staff costs

The Company has no employees. The Directors of the Company waived their right ¥ receive directors’
remuneration.

11



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE GP II LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2018

4. RECEIVABLES 2018 2017
GBP GBP
GPS receivable 165,892 164,102
Bank interest recelvable 279 1
Amounts due from Group companies - 2

166,171 164,215

Amounts due from Group companies are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are
repayable on demand.

5. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS ) 2018 2017
GBP GBP
Administration fees 2,514 -
Audit fees 5,400 5,400
Amounts due to the Fund - 12,500
Amounts due to Aberdeen Group companies 1,986,780 1,334,134

1,994,694 1,352,034

Amounts due to Aberdeen Group companies Include management fees. All amoLnts are unsecured, interest
free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand.

6. SHARE CAPITAL 2018 2017
GBP GBP

Authorised and issued
2 ordinary shares of GBPt nominal value 2 2

The holders of ordinary shares are entitied to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under paragraph 8(k) of FRS 101 not to disdose
transactions with fellow wholly owned subsidaries.

8. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING

The Company’s immediate parent company s Aberdeen Alternatives {Holdings) Limited and its ultimate parent
company Is SLA PLC, which is incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in Scotland.

The results of the Company are consolidated in the Group accounts of SLA PLC, which is the largest and
smaliest group that the results are consolidated within, which are available to the public and may be obtained
from 1 George Street, Edinburgh, EH2 2LL.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No subsequent events have occurred between the reporting period and 18 September 2019 reguiring
disclosure In the financlal statements.

12
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

REPORT OF THE GENERAL PARTNER
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The General Partner presents Its annual report and audited finandal statements for Aberdeen Infrastructure
Partners II LP {the "Fund" or "Irnvestment Entity”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Limited partnership
The Fund was established on 12 August 2014 and Is registered as a limtted partnership in England under The
Limited Partnerships Act 1907,

The General Parmer has responslibility for ensuring that the Fund is operated and managed under the terms of
the Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA"). The General Partner has delegated these responsibliities to the
Investment Manager.

Principal activity

The Fund was established to invest In a portfollo of high-quallty, operational, Private Finance Initiative/Public
Private Partnerships ("PFL/PPP") assets In the UK and Europe through its wholly owned direct subskiiaries,
Aberdeen Infrastructure II Umited ("Al II Ltd"™) and Aberdeeh Infrastructure 1 (Europe) LUimited ("Al II Europe
Ltd” and together with Al II Ltd the "Subsidiaries™).

The Fund acquired a portfolio of assets held through a group of corporate entities on 20 Novemper 2014, The
group comprised a number of holding companles and @ UK registered partnership. During December 2015,
the Fund completed the consolldation and simplification through the collapse of the group structure such that
Al II Lid held directty the Investment in the underlying assets. This restructure was achieved through the
dissoiution of a UK reglistered partnership and the transfer of lis assets to Al I Ltd and the transfer of assats
from four UK registered companles and two Luxembourg registered companies to Al 11 Lid. These companies
were subsequently placed In liquidation.

During 2017 the Fund was restructured and a wholly owned subslidlary, Al 11 Europe Ltd was incorporated.
The non-UK domiciled assets and liabilities of Al IT Ltd were transfered to Al II Europe Ltd.

The Fund's objective Is to generate long-term investment yleld over its projected 20 year life. The portfolio Is
expected to generate long-term, inflation-linked cashflows, principally driven by low-risk, avallabliity-based
contracts with government agencles. The investments are held In social and economic infrastructure projects
(indluding health, education, leisure centres and accommodation) underpinned by long-term secure
govemment contracts characterised by stable, prediciable, avallability-based cash flows.

Finandial risk management

The key risks and uncertainties faced by the Fund are managed within the framewark established for the
Investment Manager. Exposures to market risk, gredit risk and liquikdity risk arlse in the normal course of the
Ffund's business. These risks ame discussed, and supplementary qualitative and quantitative information is
provided in Note 9 to the financial statements. The management of the Fund's liquidity sk Is delegated to the
Investment Manager.

Results and raview of business
The Fund’s total comprehensive income for the year was EUR10,943,206 (2017: EURB,331,126). Retum of
capital during the year amounted to EUR12,231,611 (2017: EUR10,459,137).

Statement of General Partner’s responsibiiities in respect of the financlal statements

The General Partner Is responsible for preparing the finandal statements for each financlal period which give a
true and fair view, in accordance with applicable law (l.e. the Companfes Act 2006 as apptied to limited
partnerships by the Limited Liability Partherships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companles Act 2006)
Regulations 2008), the LPA and Internationat Finandal Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Unlon ("IFRSs"), of the state of affairs of the Fund and of the profit or loss of the Fund for that year.

3



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

REPORT OF THE GENERAL PARTNER (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Staternent of General Partner’s responsibilities In respect of the finandal statements (continued)
In preparing these finandal statements, the General Partner Is required to:

select sultable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any materlal departures
disclosed and explained In the financlal statements; and

» prepare the finandal statements on the going concern basls, unless It s inappropeiate to presume that
the Fund will continue In business.

The General Pariner is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy, at any time, the finandal position of the Fund and enable the General Partner to ensure that the
finandai statements comply with applicable iaw, IFRSs and the LPA. The General Partner Is also responsible
for safeguerding the assets of the Fund and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other lrregularities.

The General Partner confirms that B hes complled with the above requirements in preparing the finandal
staterents,

Audit information

As at the date of approval of the Report of the General Partner, the General Partner conflirms that, so far as
the General Partner Is aware, there Is no relevant audit Information of which the Fund’s Independent Auditors
Is unaware; and the General Partner has taken ali the steps that ought to have been taken as a General
Partner t0 be aware of any relevant audit Information and 1o establish that the Fund's Independent Auditors Is
aware of that information.

Subseguent events
There were no subsequent events to report at the date of signing this report and the audited financial
statements.

Going concemn

The General Partner considers that the Fund has adequate resources to continue In operational exdstence for
the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the General Partner has taken Into account all available
information about the foreseeable future and consequently the going concern basls is appropriate in preparing
the finandal statements,

Independent Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers €I LLP have indicated thelr willingress to continue In office, and a resolution that

they be reappointed will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Brexit

Recent and ongoing developments around the Brextt process means there is continued political uncertainty
over the timetable and terms on which the United Kingdom will leave the European Unlon. The appaointed
Investment Manager Is a globa! Investment manager that has been planning for a range of soenarios under
which the United Kingdom could eventually leave the Europaan Union - Induding the possibllity of leaving
without a deal - and the Investment Manager has put In place measures to mitigate the Impacts on Its
customers, dlents and operations. The General Partner in conjunction with the Investment Manager will
continue to foliow developments closely and assess thelr implications In relation to thelr contingency planning.
The General Partner's priority Is to ensure, whatever the circumstances of the United Kingdom's exit from the
European Union, the Investment Manager Is sultably placed to support the Fund.

By order of the Board, ™"

/ .

1A Y wé

Aberdeen Infrastructure GP II Limited
28 March 2019



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

REPORT OF THE INVESTMENT MANAGER
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

The EU Altemative Investment Fund Managers Directive (Directive 2011/61/EU) ("AIFMD”™) entered Into force
on 21 July 2011 and member states, including the United Kingdom, were required to transpose this Into
national law by 22 July 2013. The AIFMD has been implemented In the United Kingdom by a combination of
the HM Treasury Regulations and FCA handbook rules.

The Investment Manager s the designated Altemative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM"} and is subject to
regulation under the AIFMD. The AIFM has regular reporting responsiblitties In accordance with the ATFMD.
The Fund is considered to be an Alternative Investment Fund ("AIF") managed by the AIPM. Whiist the
Investment Manager's registration as an AIFM has no direct regulatory bearing on the AIF, the AIFM has,
together with the General Partner, agreed to make available certain Information In order to assist the AIFM In
complying with its responsiblilties,

Report on the Activities of the Finandial Year

Information on the activitles of the Fund In each quarter are discussed in the Fund’s Limited Partner Reports
which are issued separately to the Fund’s Umited Partners on a quarterly basis.

Material Changes and Periodic Rlak Management

Materal changes are discussed in the Fund's Limited Pariner Reports which are issued separately to the Fund's
Limited Partners on a quarterly basis.

In relation to Risk Management, please refer to Note 9 to the Finandal Statements for detalls regarding the
Fund's exposure to certain Anandal Risks which require disdosure under the AIFMD. Separately, Operational
Risks are detalled in the Operational Risk Management Report which Is avallable to relevant regulators and the
Fund's Limited Partners upon request, A request for this report should be made to the Investment Manager,

Remunearation Disclosure
Remuneration Policy

The Standard Life Aberdeen plc Remuneration Policy applies with effect from 1 January 2018. The purpose of
the Standard Life Aberdeen plc Remuneration Policy (the “Policy™) Is to document dearly the remuneration
polides, practices and procedures of Aberdeen Standard Life group of companies ("SLA"). It has been
approved by the Standard Life Aberdeen pic Remuneration Committee and Is subject to the Remuneration
Committee’s annual review. The Policy applies to employees of the SLA,

The AIFM is authorised and regulated In the United Kingdom by the Rnandal Conduct Authority (*FCA™) and Is
a wholly owned subsidiary of Standard Life Aberdeen pic.

The Remuneration Committee of Standard Life Aberdeen plc ("Remuneration Committee") adopted an AIFM
Remuneration Pollcy to ensure that the requirements of the AIFMD are fully adhered to by the group. This
policy applies to the Investment Manager and the AIFs It manages. This policy Is available on request.



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

REPORT OF THE INVESTMENT MANAGER (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Ramunerztion Disciosure (continuad)
Remuneration Principlies

SLA applles group wide prindples for remuneration polides, procedures and practices ensuring that
remuneration design and the basls for awards will be clear, transparent and falr, in line with business
strategy, objectives, cutture, values and long term Interests of SLA. Remuneration policies, procedures and
practces should be consistent with and promote good conduct which Includes sound and effective risk
management and not encourage risk taking that exceeds the level of tolerated risk of SLA, Total variabie
remuneration will be funded through pre-agreed distribution metrics. Where SLA’s finandal performance Is
subdued or negative, total varlable remuneration shouid generally be contracted, taking Into account both
current remuneration and reductions In pay-outs of amounts previously granted and having regard for SLA's
long term econamic viabllity.

In addition to applying the SLA wide principles above, Aberdeen Standard Investments ("ASI”) applies a
number of additional principles induding the following, when determining remuneration for employees:

a) Remuneration showld be competittve and reflect both financial, nonfinanclal and personal
performance;

b) Remuneration design will align the Interests of employees, shaneholders and importantly our
dlents/customers;

c) Remuneration structure will rewand delivery of results over appropriate ime horizons and will
include deferred variable compensation at an appropriate level for the employee's role;

d) Provide an appropriate ievel of fixed remuneration to balance risk and reward,

Govemmance and Regulatory Compilance

The Remuneration Commitiee Is made up of independent non-executive directors and makes
recommendations to the Board of Standard Life Aberdeen pic (the "Board™) to assist it with its remuneration
related dutles, The Chief People Officer of SLA Is responsible for ensuring the Implementation of the Pollcy in
consuftation with the Remuneration Committee as well as other members of the Executive Commitiee

("Executive Body™) (as defined by the Board), If appropriate.

Financial and Non-Financial Criterla

Variable remuneration Is based on a rounded assessment of Group, Divislonal and Individual performance.
When assessing Individual performance, financlal as well as non-financial critetia are taken into account.
Individual performance Is based on the individuai’s appralsal, which Includes an employee’s compliance with
controls and applicable company standards induding the Group’s Code of Ethics, Inciuding Treating Customers
Falrly and Conduct Risk.

Conflicts of Interest

The Conflicts of Interest Policy Is designed to avold conflicts of Interest between SLA and is cllents. This
Policy prohibits any employee from being Involved in dedisions on thelr own remuneration. Furthermore, all
employees are requlred to adhere to SLA's Global Code of Conduct, which encompasses conflicts of Interest.

The Policy should, at all imes, adhere to local egislation, regulations or other provisions. In drcumstances or
In jursdicions where there Is any conflict between the Pollcy and local leglslation, regulations or other
provisions, then the latter wilt prevail.



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

REPORT OF THE INVESTMENT MANAGER {(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Remuneration Disclosure (continued)
Ramuneration Framawork

Employee remuneration is composed prindpally of fixed and varlable elements of reward as follows:
a) Fixed reward (fixed remuneration; salary (and cash allowances, If appropriate); and Benefits
(Induding penslon).

b) variable reward (bonus, a proportion of which may be subject to retention or deferral
depending on roie and regulatory requirements) and senior employees may aiso be awarded a
long-term incentive award).

Appropriate ratios of fixed and variable remuneration will be set so as to ensure that:
a) Axed and variable components of total remuneration are appropriately balanced and
b) The fixed component Is a sufficientdy high proportion of total remuneration to allow SLA to
operate a fully Mexible policy on variable remuneration companents, Induding paying no
variable remuneration component.

Fixed Base salary provides a core reward for undertaking the role, where appropriate, and
Remuneration  |depending on the role, geographical or busliness market varlances or other Indicators,
addltional fixed cash allowances may make up a portion of fixed remuneration.

Benafits Benefits are made up of: core beneftts, which are provided to all employees; and extra
voluntary benefits that may be chosen by certain employees and which may requlre1
oontribution through salary sacrifice or other arrangements. Extra voluntary benefits are
designed to support the health and wellbeing of employees through enabling Individual
selection based on Ifestyle cholces. SLA will ensure that the core and voluntary employee
benefits policies are In line with relevant market practice, Its views on managing its business
Hsk objectives, culture and values and long-term Interests and local requirements.

Pension SLA's pension polides (which consist of defined contribution plans and legacy defined benefit
plans) are In line with legislative requirements, governance structures and market practice,
and reflect SLA's iong-term views on risk and finandal volaliiity, its business objectives,
culture and values and jong-term Interests and local requirements, In certain drcumstances,
SLA may offer a cash allowance In lieu of any pension arrangement.

Annual Employees who have been employed during a performance year (1 January to 31 December)|
Performonce may be eligible to be considered for an annual bonus In respect of that year, Eligibility criteria
Bonus Awards  |for an annual bonus are set out In the rules of the relevant bonus plan and/or contract of]
employment, as appropriate. The bonus plan In place is designed to reward performance in
line with the business strategy, objectives, culture and values, fong term interests and risk
appetite of SLA. All Executive Directors are awarded bonuses under a SLA bonus plan as
detalled In the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Other variable  |Selected employees may partidpate In other variable pay plans, for example, performance fee
Pay Plans share arrangements, where it is appropriate for thelr role or business unlt. These plans
operate under the overarching remuneration principles that apply across the group and,
where appropriate, are also subject to specific principles governing Incentives and are
compliant with the requirements of any applicable regulatory standards.




ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

REPORT OF THE INVESTMENT MANAGER (CONTINUED)
For the year endad 31 December 2018

Remuneration Disclosure (continued)
Clawback/Malus

A dawbadi/malus prindple applies to the variable pay plan. This enables the Remuneration Committee to
seek to recoup the deferred amount of any unvested variable pay, in the exceptional event of misstatement or
misleading representation of performance; a significant fallure of risk management and conbol; or seHous
misconduct by an Individual,

Guarantead Variable Remuneration

Guaranteed variable remuneration Is exceptional, occurs only In the context of hiring new staff and Is limited
o the first year of service,

AIFMD Identifled Staff

Staff considered AIFMD Identifled Staff are those categories of staff whose professional activiies have a
material Impact on the risk proflies of the AIFM or the AlFs that the AIFM manages.

AIFMD Identified staff will include; Senlor Management; Risk takers, Staff engaged in control functions; and
any employees recelving total remuneration that takes them Into the same remuneration bracket as senlor
management and risk takers, and whose professional activities have a material Impact on the risk profiles of
the comparny or the funhds that SLA manages.

Control Functions

SLA adheres to the principles and guideiines of regulations that apply to SLA In defining control functions.
control funcons include, but are not necessartly imited to, Risk, Compliance, Intemal Audit and Actuarial
functions or roles.
SLA will ensure that, as appropriate, senlor employees engaged in a control functon:

a) Are Independent from the Business Units they oversee;

b) Have appropriate authority, and
t) Thelr remuneration is directly overseen by the Remuneration Committee.

This is achlevad by the maln control functions belng outside the business, and a material propottion of thelr
annual incentlves belng sublect to 2 soorecard based on the performance of the control functon.
Performance against the scorecard Is reviewed by the relevant Independent governing committee (either Risk
& Capital Committee, or Audit Committee).

Personal Hedging

AIFMD Identifled Staff are not permitted to undermine the risk alignment effects of the AIFMD Remuneration
Code. Personal hedging strategles; or remuneration-related insurance; or llabillty-related insurance Is not
permissible on remuneration.



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERSII LP

REPORT OF THE INVESTMENT MANAGER (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Remuneration Disclosure (continued)
Employee Remuneration Disclosurs

The table below provides an overview of the foliowing:

. Aggregate total remuneration pald by Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited to Its entire
staff; and

. Aggregate total remuneration pald by Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited to Its
‘Identified Staff’.

The ‘Identifled Staff" of Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited are those employees who could have a
material impact on the risk profile of Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited or the AIFs It manages. This
broadly Includes senlar management, risk takers and control functions. For the purposes of this disclosure,
‘Identifled Staff Indudes employees of entities to which activities have been delegated.

Amounts shown reflect payments made during the finandal reporting perlod in question. The reporting period
runs from 1 January 2018 1o 31 December 2018 Indusive.

Total AIF or
Absrdeen Infrastructure Partners I LP UCITS
Head t Rem tio
coun uneration proportion

Reporting period: 01/01/18 - 31/12/18 €000 €'000 *
[Aberclhen Standard Fund Managers Limited |- 12,660 186
of which
FAxed remuneration 10,071 148

arlable remuneration 2,589 38
Carried Interest NIL
Aberdean Standard Fund Managers Limitad
‘Identified Staf?’ 2 162 3,811 56
jof which
Senlor Management 3 16 600 9
Other ‘Identified St2ff 146 3211 47
The above table has not been audited,

b As there are a number of individuals Indirectly and directly employed by Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited

this figure represents an apportioned amount of SLA's total nemuneration fixed and varable pay, apportioned to the
relevant AIF on an AUM basis, plus 2ny carried interest pald by the AIF, The Heedcount figure pravided reflects the
number of beneficlaries caloulated on a Ful Time Equivalent basls.

2 The Identiflad Staff disclosure represents total compensation of those staff of the AIFM who are Rilly or party
inveived In tha activities of the AIFM, apportioned to the estimated time relevant to the AIFM, based on thelr time In
role during the reporting perlod and the AIFM's proportion of SLA's total AUM. Across the ‘Identified Staff, the
average percentage of AUM allocation per Individual based on work undertaieen for Aberdeen Standard Fund
Managers Limited as an AIFM was 4.76%.

3 Senior management are gefined in this table as AIFM Directors and members of the Standard Life Aberdeen pic
Board, together with Its Exeautive Committee, Investment Management Committes and Group Product Committee.
4 This figure represents an apportioned amount of the total remuneration of the *Identified staff” attributable to the ATF

ailocated on an AUM basls.



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The General Partner presents its strategic report on the Fund for the yaar ended 31 December 2018,

Rasuits and review of the business

The total comprehensive Income for the year ts set out In the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page
14, The General Partner considers the performance of the Fund during the year and Its financial position at the
end of the year to be iIn line with the long term expected performance of the Fund and its prospects for the
year ahead to be satisfactory.

Raeview and principal activity
The principal activity Is investment holding. There has been no change In that activity during the year.

The Fund's objective Is to generate long-term Investment yield. It alms to achieve this objective from its
investment portfolio of high-quality, operational PFI/PPP assets In the UK and Europe through It5 wholly
owned subsidiaries, Al IT Ltd and Al II Europe Ltd. The Investment portfolio was created with the objective of
generating leng-term, inflabon-inked cash flows, princpaily driven by low-sk, availability-based contracts
with govemment agencles.

The General Partner has responsibility for ensuring the Fund Is always operated and managed under the terms
of the LPA, The General Partner has delegated these responsibiiities to the Investment Manager.

Prindpal risks and uncertainties

The key risks and uncertainties faced by the Fund are managed within the framework estzblished for the
Investment Manager. Exposures to market risk, credit rsk and liquidity risk arise in the normal course of the
Fund’s business, These risks are discussed, and supplementary qualitative and quantitative Information are
provided In Note 5 to the finandal statements. The Fund's liquidity risk Is managed by the Investment
Manager.

Key parformance Indicators

The fund Is a feeder vehidle In which Stitching Depositary APG Infrastructure Pool 2012, acting In its capacity
as depositary of APG Infrastructure Pool 2012, invests, to ultimately rwest In 2 portfollo of PFI/PPP assets.
Given the stralghtforward nature of the business, the Directors of the General Partner are of the opinion that
analysis using key performance Indicators Is not necessary for understanding the development, performance
or position of the business,

By order of the Board,

THY Wong ™~
Aberdeen Infrastructure GP II Limited
Date: 28 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE LIMITED PARTNERS OF ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

Report on the audit of the financia! statements

Our opinion
In our opinion, Aberdeen Infrastructure Pariners II LP's finandial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its
profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with International Anandal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Unfon; and

« have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companles Act 2006 as applied to quallfying
partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008,

We have audited the finandal statements, induded within the Annual Report and Audited Anandal Statements
(the “Annual Report™), which comprise: the statement of finandal posltion as at 31 December 2018; the
statement of comprehensive Income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes In net assets
attributable to the limited partners for the year then ended; and the notes to the finandat statements, which
indude a description of the significant accounting polides.

Basls for opinlon

We conducted our audit In accordance with Intemational Standards on Audiing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)™) and
applicable iaw. Our responsibilities under I5As (UK) are further described In the Auditors’ respansibilittes for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the aud!t evidence we have
obtained Is suffident and appropriate o provide a basls for aur apinion,

Independence

We remained Independent of the qualifying partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Anandal statements In the UK, which Indudes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we
have fuifilled our other ethical responsibllities In accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relsting to going concern
ISAs (UK) require us to report to you when:

« the general partner's use of the golng concern basls of accounting In the preparation of the finandlal
statements Is not appropriate; or

s the general partner has not discosed In the financlal statements any Identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifving partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concem
basls of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the finandlal statements are
authorised for Issue,

We have nothing to report In respect of the above matters.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement Is not a guarantes as to
the qualifying partnership’s abllity to continue as a going concern. For example, the terms on which the United
Kingdom may withdraw from the Eurcpean Unlon are not clear, and it Is difficult to evaluate all of the potential
implications on the partnership and the wider economy.

Reporting on other Information

The other Information comprises all of the Information in the Annual Report gther than the finandal statements
and our auditors’ report therecn. The general partner Is responsible for the other Information. Our apinion on
the financlal statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinlon or, except to the extent otherwise explidtly stated In this report, any form of assurance thereon.

11



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE LIMITED PARTNERS OF ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS 11 LP

Reporting on other Information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the finandal statements, our responsibility Is to read the other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information Is materfally inconsistent with the finandal statements or
our knowledge obtalned In the audit, or ctherwise appears to be materally misstated. If we identlfy an
apparent materlal Inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the finandal statements or a material misstatement of the other
Information. If, based on the work we have performed, we condude that there Is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. Wa have nothing to report based on these
responsibllities,

With respect to the Strategic Report and Report of the General Partner, we also considered whether the
disdosures required by the UK Companiles Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships have been induded.

Based on the responsibiiiies described above and our work underteken In the course of the audit, ISAs (UK)
require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Report of the General Partner

In our opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Information given in the Strategic
Report and Report of the General Partner for the year ended 31 December 2018 Is cons|stent with the finandal
statements and has been prepared In accordance with applicabie legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the quallfying partnership and its enviranment obtained in the
course of the audit, we did not identify any materfal misstatements in the Strategic Report and Report of the
General Partner,

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibllities of the general partnar for the finandal stataments

As explalned more fully In the Staternent of General Partner's responsibilities In respect of the finandal
staternents set out on page 3 and 4, the general partner Is responsible for the preparation of the financlal
statements In accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and falr
view. The general partner Is also responsible for such Intemal controf as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financlal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

In preparing the finandal statements, the general partner Is responsibie for assessing the quailfying
partnership’s ability to continue as a golng concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to golng concem
and using the golng concemn basls of accounting unless the general partner elther Intends to liguidate the
quzlifying partnership or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibliities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtaln reasonabie assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whole are free
from materlal migstatermnent, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audtt conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when [t exists. Misstatements can arlse
from fraud or error and are considered materal If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to Influence the economic decislons of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibllities for the audit of the finandlal statements Is located on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibliittes. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE LIMITED PARTNERS OF ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

Use of this report

This report, Induding the opinlon, has been prepared for and only for the partners of the qualifying partnership
as a bady In accordance with the Carmpanles Act 2006 as appiled to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships
{Accounts) Regulations 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, In gliving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibllity for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report Is shown or Into whose hands it
may come Save whete expressly agreed by our prior consent Ih writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 excaption reporting

Under the Companles Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to report to you if, In our
opinion:

» we have not recelved all the Information and explanations we require for our audit; or

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the qualifying partnership, or retumns adequate for our
audit have not been recelved from branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of general partner's remuneration spedfied by law are not made; or

= the finandai staterments are not In agreement with the acrounting records and retums,

We have no exceptions to report arlsing from this responsiblility.

el

Adrian Peacegood {Senlor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Guemnsey, Channel Islands

Date: 2€ Masdda D.p\)
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Income
Interest incormne

Total Income

Expanses

Net changes In falr value of Ainandal assets at fair
value through proftt or loss

Administration fees

Audit fees
Legal and professional fees

Other operating expenses

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)
General Partner's Share

Total expenses

Profit for the year

Other comprehansive income/{loss)
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive Income for the year

Notes 2018 2017
EUR EUR

4 15,089,240 17,741,908

15,089,240 17,741,908

5 2,974,059 8,146,394

11,626 7,323

35,665 60,444

113,186 99,240

367 447

10,288 (3,592,218)

740,092 729,580

3,885,333 5,451,210

11,203,907 12,290,608

(260,701) (3,959,572)

10,943,206 8,331,126

All amounts reported in the statement of comprehensive Income relate to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 18 to 40 form part of these finanda| statements
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 Decamber 2018

Aasots
Non-current assets

Fnandaf assets at fair vaiue through profit or ioss
Investments in Subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

Currant assets

Recelvables and prepayments
Loan Interest recelvable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Total assats atiributabis to the Limited Partners

Liabliities
Current llabllitias
Payables and accruals

Total liabliities
Net assats atiributabie to the Limited Pariners

Limited Partners’ Interest represented by:
Pariners’ capital

Partners’ current acocount

Cumulative transiation adjusiment reserve

Total Limited Partners' Intarest

As at As at
31 December 31 December
Notes 2018 2017
EUR EUR
174,566,353 177,940,412
174,966,353 177,940,412
- 68,492
12,189,285 10,517,408
112,843 97,696
12,302,128 10,683,596
187,268,481 188,624,008
250,006 317,128
250,006 317,128
187,018,475 188,306,880
163,617,467 175,849,078
39,019,034 27,815,127
(15,618,026) (15,357,325)
187,018,475 188,306,880

The financlal statements of the Fund were authorised for Issue by the Board of Directors of Aberdeen

Infrastructure GP II Limited and signed on Its behalf by:

?

‘IHYWo{ )

Director
Date: 28 March 2019

The nates on pages 18 to 40 form part of these finandal statements

15



a1

RGeS epueuy asaUN Jo Jed uuey Op 03 8T sabied uo swou ayl

SZ¥'8T0'/81 (g9zg’8r9'sT) $E0'610'6E L9¥'£19°E91 SY0T QUEDQA TE I SV
(sov'88Z'T) (t02/'092) L06°€0Z'TT (rro'1ez’en) SRULRd PN AN 0] qeINqUIIL SIASSE 12U U] JUSLLDADN
(toz'092) (T0s'092) JeaA B J0j S50] SASUBYRUAIOD JX0
L06'E0T'TT L06'E0Z'TY - J2ak auy J0J JWoid
(Tr9'1€T'eT) - (1vo‘rez'en) jexden jo wmay
088°90£°88T (sze'£SE'sT) LZ1'S18'LL BL0'6¥8'SLT LT0T JSQUI0DQ 1€ I 5y
(110'821°2) (z£5'656°E) 869'062'7T {zeT'asv01) siauied PN AR OF AGEINGLIE SIDSSE JaA2 U] JUSWSAOKW
(2£5'656°E) (z£5'656') 1S4 SR J0) S50] BAISUSLRUdWIND B0
869'062°C1 869'06Z'21 JERA DU JO) 0
{£E1'65¥°01) - (¢e1'6s¥'01) [enden jo wmay
168'¥E1'061 (gss't6€1Y) 62v'ves'sT STZ'B0C'98T 9707 JSquIIad TE I- sy
una una una una
=0l DA unoxa [des ainieg
wougsafpe RRUN ssaujied
uopeisuen
SARE U

8107 J9quisna(] TE papua J2ak ay) 404
SHINLYHYd GILIWNIT 3HL Ol 3T9VINATNLLY S13SSVY 1IN NI SIONVHD 40 LNIWIALYLS

d1II SYINLYVd TROLMNISVNENT N3IGU3IaY



ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the ysar ended 31 December 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year

Net changes In falr value of finandal assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Aoguisidons of finandal assets at falr value through profit or
less due bo restructuring

Retumn of capital from Investments due to restructuring
Currency translation differences

Movement In recelvables and prepayments

Movement In loan interest recetvable

Movement In payables and acoruals

Net cash flows generated from oparating activities

Cash flows from financing actlvities
Retum of capital to Umited Partners

Net cash flows genarated used In financing activities

Net increase In cash and cash equivalents
Opening cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

2018 2017
EUR EUR
11,203,907 12,290,698
2,974,059 8,146,394
- (25,199,051)
- 25,199,051
(260,701) (3,959,572)
68,492 29,196
(1,671,877 (5,242,229)
(67,122) (799,401)
12,246,758 10,465,086
(12,231,611) (10,459,137)
(12,231,611) (10,459,137)
15,147 5,949
97,696 91,747
112,843 97,696

The notes on pages 18 to 40 form part of these financial statements
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERSII LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Fund Is established as a limited partnership under the laws of England. The address of Its reg!stered office
Is Bow Bells House, 1 Bread Street, London, England, EC4M 9HH,

The Fund was established to Invest In a porifollo of high-quallty, operational, PFI/PPP assets In the UK and
Europe through s wholly owned subsidiary, AL II Lid. The Fund acquired the portfollo on 20 November 2014
and subsequently during 2015 underwent a restructuring to simplify the corporate structure and eliminate
superfluous Intermediate holding companles.

The Fund underwent a further restructuring during 2017 and a new wholly owned subsidiary, Al IT Europe Ltd
was incorporated (Note 3).

The Fund's investment activiles are managed by the General Partner who is advised by the Investment
Manager, with the administration delegated to the Administrator.

The Fund's capita! is represented by the net assets attributable to the Uimited Partners.
The Fund has Invested In AT II Ltd and AT IT Europe Lid.

These finandal statements were authorised for Issue by the Board of the General Parther of the Fund on 28
March 2019.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these finandal statements are set out below.
These polides have been consistently applied throughout the year and to all perlods presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The finandal statements of the Fund have been prepared In accordance with applicable law (i.e. the
Companles Act 2006 as applled to IImited partnerships by the Limited Llability Partnerships {Accounts and
Audit) (Application of Companles Act 2006) Regulations 2008), the LPA and Intemational Finandal Reporting
Standards by the European Union ("IFRSs"). The finandal statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of finandal assets and financlal liabtitdes at fair value through
profit or loss.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basls which assumes that the Fund will
continue In operatienal existence for the foreseeable future. The General Partner Is satisfled that It operetes In
such a way to ensure the Fund will continue te be a going concem, given its expected future cash flows from
investing activities and Its abllity to call undrawn commitments (Note 14).

The Fund meets the definition of an Investment Entity as defined by IFRS 10 (Note 2.2.1) and is required to
account for the Investment In the Subsidiaries at fair value through profit and loss.

The preparation of finandal stetements In acoordance with IFRSs requires the use of certaln critical acoounting
estimates. It aiso requires the General Partner to exercise judgement In the process of applying the Fund's
accounting polides. The areas involMing a higher degres of judgement or complesdty, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the finandal statements, are disciosed In Note 10.
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS ITI LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) Starndards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 January 2018

IFRS 9 ‘Anandial Instruments’ became effective for annual periods beglnning on or after 1 January 2018, It
addresses the dassification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and liablliles and replaces the
multiple dassifilcation and measurement modals In 1AS 39,

Classification and measurement of debt assets Is driven by the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash fliow characteristics of the financial assets. A debt instrument Is
measured at amortised cost If the objective of the business mode! Is to hold the finandal asset for the
collection of the contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows under the Instrument solely represent
payments of prindpal and interest (SPPI). A debt Iinstrument Is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income If the objective of the business model is to hold the finandal asset both to collect
contractual cash flows from SPPI and to sell. All other debt Instruments must be recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. An entity may however, at Initial recognition, Imevocably designate a finandal asset as
measured at fair value through profit or loss I doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency. Derivative and equity Instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss
unless, for equity Instruments not held for trading, an imevocable option Is taken to measure at falr value
through other comprehensive Incorme. IFRS 9 also introduces a new expected credit loss (ECL) impalrment
mode),

In determining the value of the Fund's investment In Subsidlaries, it has always been the Fund’s palicy to falr
value both the equity and shareholder debt investments In its infrastructure assets together where they will be
managed and valued as & single investment, as they were invested in at the same time and cannot be realised
separately. In light of these facts, with the appilcation of IFRS 9, the General Partner has determined that
there will be no Impact to the Fund as these Investments are already designated and measured at fair vaiue
through proftt of loss.

IFRS 15, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, was Issued in May 2014 and applies to an annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2018. It specifies how and when revenue is recognised as well as
requiring entities to provide users of finandal statements with more Informative and relevant disdosures. The
standard provides a principles based model to be appiled to all contracts with customers.

Management have assessed the income streams disclosed In the Financial Statements and have concluded that
no change s required to be made as the necognition methodology of income as It currently stands Is in line
with the new standards recommendations.

(b) New standards, amendments and Interpretations effective after 1 January 2018 and not early
adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and Interpretations are effective for annual perlods
beginning after 1 January 2018, and have not been applled In preparing these financial statements. None of
these are expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2.1 Investment entity

The Fund Indirectly holds multiple investments. Ownership interests in the Fund are in the form of limited
partnership interests which are classified as llabllitles under the provisions of IAS 32. The General Partner has
determined that the Fund meets the definiion of an investment entity per IFRS 10 as the following conditions
exist:

a) The Fund has obtalned funds for the pwpose of providing Investors with professional Investment
management services;
b) The Fund's business purpose, which was communicated directly to Investors, is Investing for capital

appredation and Investment income; and
¢) The Investments are measured amd evaluated on a falr value basls,

2.2.1.1 Investment entity status

The General Partner has determined that the Fund meets the definitlon of an Investment Entity. An
Investment Entity Is defined as an entity that:

a) has ralsed commitments from Investors In order to rafse capltal to invest In Infrastructure investments and
to provide the Investors with Investment management services with respect to these Infrastructure
Investments;

b) intends to generate capital and Income retums from Its infrastructure Investments which will, in tum, be
distributed |n accordance with the LPA to the Limited Partners; and

c) evaluates its Infrastructure investments' performance on a falr value basls, In accordance with the policies
set out In these financial statements.

Although the Fund met all three defining crtterta, the General Partner has also assessed the business purpose
of the Fund, the Investment strategles, the nature of any eamings and the fair value models of its Investments.
The General Pariner made this assessment In order to determine whether any additional areas of judgement
extst with respect to the typical characteristics of an Investment entity versus those of the Fund.

2.2.2 Subsidiaries

Where the Rund s deemed to control an underlying portfolio company elther directly or Indirectly through a
holding company subsidiary and whether the control be via voting rights or through the abllity to direct the
relevant activitlies in retum for access to a significant portion of the variable gains and losses dertved from
those relevant activities, the underlying portfollc company and Its results are not consolidated and are Instead
reflected at fair vaiue through the proftt or loss. As at 31 December 2018, the Fund Is directly invested in two

such portfolic companies.

The Fund does not have any other direct subsidiaries other than those determined %o be investment entities.
Investment entity subsidiary Investments are measured at falr vaiue through profit or loss and are not
consolidated in accordance with IFRS 10.

The Fund cperates as an investment structure whereby the Fund invests and commits to Invest into varlous
portfollo companles through Subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2018, there were no outstanding capital
commitment obligations with respect to specific portfollo company acquisitions and ne amounts due to the
portfolla compariles for unsettied purchases.
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
21.2.2 Subsidiaries {continued)

The Fund primarily Invests into the portfolio companies by purchasing, Indirectly through its investment entity
subsidiaries, the ordinary equity and subordinated loan notes of these PFI/PPP companles. The portfolio
companles pay cash Interest or acaue Interest on the debt held by the Investment entity subsidiarles, and
repay debt based on the terms of the respective agreements. Cash dividends may be pald based on the
portfollc company's operating results and are at the discretion of the board of directors of the respective
portfolic companles which are then pald up to the Fund through the respective subsidlary. There are no
amounts due or acaued for preferred dividend or In-kind returns based on any of the sharehoider agreements.

Movements In the fair value of the Fund's undertying portfollo companies held via the Investment entity
subsidiaries and the existence of unfunded commitments may expose the Fund to potential gains or losses.

2.3 Forsign currency transiation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The General Partner considers GBP as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions of the Fund. However, the General Partner chooses to report In
EUR, the functional currency of the Fund's Investor.

{b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional cumrency using the exchange rates prevalling at
the date of the transaction., Forelgn currency assets and liabilities, other than finandal assets and liabilities at
fair value through proftt or loss are translated Into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevalling
at the Statement of Anandal Pesitlon date,

Assgts and lizbllities In the Statement of Finandal Position presented a2re transiated into the presentation
currency at the exchange rate prevalling at the Statement of Finandal Posttion date. Income and expenses in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income are translated from the functional currency into the presentational
currency using the exchange rates prevalling at the date of the transadction. Al resulting exchange differences
are recognised In other comprehensive Income with the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
presented In a2 separate component of Limited Partner's Interest, the cumulative translation adjustment
reserve, All tems included in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to the Limited Partner, other
than the comprehenslve income for the year, are translated at historical exchange rates,

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the finandal assets and llabliities carrled at fair value through
profit or loss are presented In the Statement of Comprehensive Income within "Net changes In falr value of
financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss™.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash balances at the beginning and end of each period presented, are

translated at exchange rates at the respective dates of the beginning and end of each period. All cash flows
are translated at the exchange rates prevalling at the date of the transaction.
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Financial assets and financial liabliities at fair value through profit or loss
{a) Classification

Rnanclal assets and financial ilablittes are classified as held for brading or designated as at fair value through
profit or loss by the General Partner at Inception:

(i) Financial assets and lfabliities leld for trading

A finandal asset or finandial liabllity Is dassified as held for trading If it {s acquired or Incurred principally
for the purpose af selling or repurchasing In the near term or If on nttial recognition Is part of a portfollo
of klentifiable financial investments that are managed together and for which there Is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking.

The Fund did not hold any finandal assets or llabllities held for trading as at 31 December 2018 or 31
December 2017,

(/1) Financial azsets and labllities designated at fair value through prof¥ or loss at incepiion

Fnandal assets and financial liablittles designated at falr value through profit or loss at inception are
financial Instruments that are not dassified as held for trading but are managed, and their performance
is evaluated on a falr value basls In accordance with the Fund's documented Investment sirategy.

The Fund's policy requires the Investment Manager and the General Partner to evaluate the information about
these financial assets and liabllities on a fair value basls together with other related financlal Information.

(b) Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Anancial assets and finandial Habilites at falr value through profit or loss are Initialiy recognised at falr vaiue,
Transaction costs are expensed as Incurred In the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Fnandal assets are derecognised when the rights to recetve cash flows from the Investments have explred or
the Fund has transferred substantially 2l risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent to Initial recognition, ail finandai assets and financial liabliides at falr value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes In the falr value of the ‘financial assets or
financia! llabllites at falr value through profit or loss' category are presented In the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within "Net changes In falr value of finandal assets and liabllities at fair value through
profit or loss’ In the period In which they arlse.

The Fund has always falr valued both debt and equity investments. In the prior year the debt instruments were
Incorrectly described as loans and recelvables. This has been updated In the current year finandial statements
with all Investments now recognised In the Statement of Finandal Position as "Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss".

Dividend and interest Income from finandal assets at fair value through profit or loss Is recognised In the
Statement of Comprehensive Income In accordance with Note 2,9,
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Financlal assets and financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
(c) Fair value estimation

Falr value is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a llability In an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Fund's valuation technique for determining the fair value of Its Investment In subsidlaries Is the net present
value of the estimated future cash flows based on a discounted cash flow moded,

The discounted cash flow model considers the total equity and debt Investment made into the portfolio
companies Indirectly through the Fund's Subsldiarles, The Fund’s policy Is to fair value both the equity and
shareholder debt investments in Infrastructure assets together where they will be managed and valued as a
single Investment, as they were Invested In at the same time and cannot be realised separately. The General
Pariner considers that equity and debt share the same characteristics and risks and they are therefore treated
as a single unit of account for valuation purposes and a single class for disclosure purposes,

The discount rate used by the Fund is based on the risk-free rate of the economic environment in which
portfello companles operate and is adjusted with aother factors such as liquidity, credit and market Hsk factors.
Similar to the earnings multiples model, cash flows used In the discount cash flow model are based on
projected cash flows or earnings of the portfollo companles.

2.5 Receivables and prepayments

Receivables are Initially recognised at falr value ard measured subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective Interest method. Prepayments are assets pald In advance and amortised over the relevant period,

Such assets are short term In nature and the camrying value of these assets Is considered to be approximate to
thelr fair value. All assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there Is any
Indication of Impairment. If any such Indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount Is estimated based on
expected discounted future cash flows. Any cthange In levels of Impalrment is recognised directly In the
statement of comprehensive Income. An Impalrment loss is reversed at subsequent financlal reporting dates to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed its carrying value, had no Impairment been
recognlised.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equlvalents consist of cash balances that are freely avallable and other short-term highly liguid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, and bank overdraft.

2.7 Distributions payabie to the Limited Partners

Retum of funded committed capital is shown in the Statement of Changes In Net Assets attributable to the
Umited Partners. Distributions of current year Income is shown as finance costs In the Statement of
Comprehensive Income,

Subject to Clause 10 of the LPA, &1l income and capital proceeds of the Fund shall be distributed between the
Partners In order of priority (after payment of expenses and llabllities of the Fund) In accordance with Clause
10.1 of the LPA,
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.7 Distributions payable to the Limitad Partners {continued)

Proposed distributions to the Limited Partners are recognised in the Statement of Comprebensive Income when
they are appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the Fund. This typically ocaurs when a
proposed distribution is ratifled at a General Partner's meeting. The distribution Is recognised as a finance cost
in the Statement of Comprehensive Inoome. Any capital returned Is recognised In the Statement of Changes In
Net Assats Atiributzble to the Limited Partners.

2.8 Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are inlally recognised at falr value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Payables and accruals are derecognised when the obligation under the lfabllity
Is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.9 Interest Income and dividend income

Interest Income from shareholder debt that Is measured at fair value through profit or loss Is recognised as it
accrues by reference to the prindpal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which Is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the finandal asset to the
asset’s carrying value or principal amount. The remalning changes in the fair value movement of the loans are
recognised separately within ‘Net changes in fair value of finandal assets and liabliitles at falr value through
profit or loss' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, It also includes Interest Income from cash and cash

eqguivalents.

Dividend Income is recognised when the right to recelve payment Is established.
2.10 Expenses
Expenses are recognised on an accruals basls,

2.11 Taxation

The Fund is domiclied In England. Under the current laws of England, there Is no income, estate, corporation,
capltal gains or other taxes payable by the Fund.

2.12 Net agseis attributable to the Limited Pariners

Ownership Interests In the Fund are in the form of an interest In the net assets attributable to the Umited
Partners. Net assets atiributable to the Limlted Partners are dassified as a financlal liabilty, due to a finite iife
and contractual payment provisions to each of the Limited Partners within the LPA.

Net assets atiributable to Limited Partriers' capital are canrled at amortised cost.

2.1.3 General Partner's Share

Under Clause 9 of the LPA, the General Partner shall be entitied to receive from the Fund an allocation as a
first charge on net Income and caplital galns by way of a General Partner's Share ("GPS").

The GPS payables shall be reduced by deducting transaction fees, Investment related fees, directors' fees etc.,
eamed by the General Partner, Investment Manager or assodates of elther of them.
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2., SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.14 Allocation of profits and losses

a) Subject to dlause 9.8(c) of the LPA, every Limited Partner has an Interest in every asset of the Fund
and, accordingly, all Income, Capital Gains and Capital Losses shall (after the allocation of the General
Partmer's Share) be allocated to the Limited Partners so that the balances on thelr accounts shall reflect
thelr respective entitiements to recefve distributions in accordance with the provisions of Clause 10.1.

b) If & particular allocation of Capital Galn and/or Income Is assumned In computing the Tax Credits
avallable to the Limited Partners for the purpose of calaulating when each Limited Partner has recelved
sums egual to the aggregate of amounts under Clause 10.1 then, notwithstanding any other provision of
this Clause 9.8, such Capital Gain and/or Income shall be aliocated In accordance with that assumption.

c) The Investment Manager may In Its discretion, allocate Items of Income, Capltal Gains, Capital Losses
and Expenses to particular Uimited Partners up to the maxdémum amount available, with cormesponding
adjustments to the allocation of the other items.

Net (ncome, net losses, capital gains and losses aliocated to each Limited Partner shail be credited or debited
to the LUimited Partner’s income or capital account. Accordingly, the General Partner has determined that all net
increases or decreases on assets and labllites categorised as falr value through profit or loss, will be booked
through the caplital acoount.

2.15 Undrawn committed capital

Undrawn committed capfttal from the Limited Partners Is not shown on the Statement of Anandal Positon, as
undrawn committed capital represents a loan commitment that Is scoped out of IFRS 9,

3. RESTRUCTURE
On 19 December 2017 the Fund was restructured. A new wholly owned subsidiary, Al II Europe Lid was
Incorporated on 5 July 2017 in lleu of the restructure. See Note 6 for further detalls regarding the new

subsidiary. The conduslon of the restructure resulted in all non-UK domidiled Investments now being held In Al
II Europe Lid and ali GBP denominated Investments retalned In AL II Ltd.

4. INTEREST INCOME

2018 2017

EUR EUR
From cash and cash equivalents 167 143
From financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15,089,073 17,741,765
15,089,240 17,741 908
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS 1I LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Net changes In financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2018 2017

EUR EUR
Brought forward 177,940,412 186,086,806
Additions - 25,199,051
Retum of caplital - (25,199,051)
Net changes in fair value of financlal assets at falr value through
profit or loss (2,974,059) (8,146,394)
As at 31 December 74266353 __172,990412

The Additons during the prior year comprise of €25,199,051 relating to the investment in Al I Europe
Ltd,

Change In unrealised loss for Level 3 assets held as at year end and
Induded in net changes In fair value of finandal assets at falr value

through profit or loss (2,974,059) (8,146,3%4)

2018 2017
FairValue % of netassets Falrvalue % of net assets
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Equity Securites 62,381,795 33.36% 63,388,685 33.66%
Debt Securities 112 584 557 60.20% 114,551,727 60.83%
Investment in the Subsidlaries 174,966 353 63.56% 177940412 94,49%

The debt securities have always been measured at fair value. These Instruments were previously Incorrectly

described as loans and recelvables. This note has been updated to Indude all investments as debt securities,

these were previously segregated Into a separate note.

SUBSIDIARIES

The Fund operates as an Integrated structure whereby the Fund invests solely Into the Subsidiaries. Total
investments made by the Fund into the Subsldlaries during the year ended 31 December 2018 were EUR NIl

{2017: EUR 25,199,051). As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 there were no capltal commitment
obligations and no amounts due to the Subsldiaries for unsettded purchases.

The Subsldlaries of the Fund are as follows:
Investment In the Subsidiaries held by the Fund
Address of the Princlpal Date of Country of
Subsidlary registered office activity incorporation incorporation Holding %

Aberdeen Bow Bells House, 1  Investment 12 August 2014 United 100
Infrastructure Bread Street, holding Kingdom
1I Limited London, EC4M SHH

Aberdeen  Bow Bells House, 1  Investment 05 July 2017 United 100
Infrastructure Bread Street, holding Kingdom
11 {(Europe) London, EC4M 9HH
Limited
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS IT LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. SUBSIDIARIES {(continued)
Investment in ithe Subsidiaries held by Aberdeen Infrastrincture I Limited

Address of the Principal Date of Country of
Subsidiary registered office activity incorporation incorporation

Bristel Schools Kelvin House, Infrastructure 12 February Scotland
(Holdings) 1td ~ Buchanan Gate 2004
Business Park,
Stepps, Glasgow,
G33 6FB

Crawley Kelvin House, Infrastructure 22 May 2003 Scotland
Schools Buchanan Gate
{Holdings} Lid Business Park,
Stepps, Glasgow,
G33 6FB

Dalkeith SPv Kedvin House, Infrastructure 18 Janurary Scotland

(Holdings) Ltd ~ Buchanan Gate 2002
Business Park,
Stepps, Glasgow,
G33 6FB
East Kelvin House, Infrastructure 19 February Scotland
Renfrewshire Buchanan Gate 2004
Schools Business Park,
(Holdings) Ltd  Stepps, Glasgow,
G33 6FB

Heatthcare  Unit 18 Riversway Infrastructure 28 July 2005 England
Solutions (Hull}  Business Village
Holdings Ltd  Navigation Way,
Ashton-On-Ribble,
Preston, PR2 2YP

Unteum Unit 18 Riversway Infrastructure 20 August 2004  England
(Lewisham) Business Village
Holdings Ltd  Navigation Way,
Ashton-On-Ribble,
Preston, England,
PR2 2YP

Axom Unit 18 Riversway Infrastructure 28 July 2005 England
Education Buslness Viilage
(Rochdale) Navigation Way,
Holdings Ltd  Ashton-On-Ribble,
Prestaon, PRZ 2YP
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Investment in the Subsidlaries held by Aberdeen Infrastructure I Limited {oontinuved)

Healthcare (St. Summilt House, 4-5 Infrestructure 06 June 2007

Andrews) Lid Mitchell Street,
Edinburgh, Scotland,
EH6 7BD

Linteurn Untt 18 Riversway Infrastucture 28 December

(Uttesford) Business Village
Holdings Ltd Navigation Way,
Ashton-On-Ribble,
Preston, England,
PR2 2YP

Unteum Unit 18 Riversway Infrastructure 20 August 2004

{Willesden) Business Village
Holdings ttd Navigation Way,
Ashton-On-Ribbie,
Preston, England,
PR2 2YP

2001

Scotland

England

England

Investment In the Subsidiaries held by Aberdeen Infrastructure IT (Europe) Limited

Nacre 2008 19 Rue Stephenson Infrastructure
S.A.S, 78180 MONTIGNY
LE BRETONNEUX
France

Douai Logl 19 Rue Stephenson Infrastructure
Services 5.A.S5. 78180 MONTIGNY
LE BRETONNEUX
France

MPFI Schools 1 Sulte 54, Infrastructure
Investments Morrison Chambers,
DAC 32 Nassau Street,
Dublin 2
Irefand

Safire Holding p.a. Strukton Infrastructure
B.V. Integrale Frofecten,
Westkanaaidljk 2,
Utrecht, Postbus
1025, 3600 BA
Maarssen
Netherlands

QPP Arkivet Roskildevej 12, Infrastructure
A/S 2620,
Albertslund,

Denmark 28

20 February
2006

26 May 2005

13 December
2007

07 April 2006

18 June 2007

France

France

Ireland

Netherlands

Denmark

100

100

100

90

80

100

100
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ABERDEEN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS II LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

7. RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

2018 2017

EUR EUR
Due from AI II Ltd 14,205
Due from General Parther - 14,204
Due from AI I1 Europe Ltd - 4(,083
- 68,497

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the camrying amount of receivables and prepayments
approximates to their fair value.

8. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2018 2017

EUR EUR
Administration fees 2,825 8,604
Audit fees 44,877 56,818
Legal and professional fees 17,978 65,227
General Partner’s Share 184,326 186,479

250,006 317,128

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the carrylng amount of payables and accruals approximates
to thelr falr values,

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Fund's finandal risk management Is to manage and control the risk exposures of its
investment portfolle. The Investment Manager has overall responsibility for overseeing the management of
finarklal risks. The review and management of finandal risks are performed by the Investrent Manager, which
has documented procedures designed to Identify, monltor and manage the finandal risks to which the Fund is
exposed. This note presents Information about the Fund's exposure to finandal Hsks, its objectives, polides
and processes for managing risk and the Fund's management of Its finandal resources.

The Fund, through Its Subsidiaries, owns a portfollo of investments predominantly In the subordinated loan
notes (subordinate to senior debt) and ordinary equity of PFI/PPP companies. These companies are structured
at the autset to minimise financial risks of acquiring and holding the investment. The Fund primarily focuses Its
risk management on the direct finandial Hsks of acquiring and holding the portfolios, but continues to monitor
the Indirect finandal risks of the underlying projects through representation, where appropriate, on the hoards
of the project companies and the recelpt of regular finandal and operational performance reports.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

9.1 Financlal risk factors

9.1.1 Market risk

Market risk Is defined as the potentlal loss In value or eamings of the Fund arising from changes In
external market factors such as:

s Interest rates (Interest rate risk);
= forelgn exchange rates (currency risk); and
« equlty markets (other price risk).

The Investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertalnties about futire values of the
Instruments. The Fund has an Investment Manager who provides the General Partner with Investment
recommendations. The Investment Managet's recommendations are reviewed and approved by the
General Partner before the Investment dedslons are implemented.

The performance of the Investments held by the Fund are monitored by the Investment Manager on a
manthly basls and reviewed by the Generat Partner on a quarberly basis.

(a) Price risk

Returns from the Fund's Investments are affected by the price at which they are acquired. The value of
these investments will be a function of the discounted value of their expected future cash flows, and as
such will vary with, Inter alla, movements in interest rates, market prices and the competition for such

assets.

Price risk arises from the Fund's exposure to Investment In the Subsidiardes. The Fund undertakes a full
assessment of each entity's potential for value creation prior to entering Into 2 new transaction,
Thereafter, the performance of each Investment is continually monitored and action taken as deemed
appropriate In the circumnstances. Further information about the Fund's sensitivity to changes In the fair
value of its Investment In the Subsidiaries Is set out below.

At the reporting date the camying value of the Investment in the Subsidiaries amounted to
EUR174,966,353 (2017: EUR177,940,412). For Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss,
changes [n falr value would have a direct Impact on total comprehensive Income for the year. The tabie
befow sets out the sensitivity of total comprehensive Income for the year to 2 10% change In falr value
of its investment In the Subslidiaries as at the Statement of Rnanclal Position date.

Effect of investment in the Subsidiaries falr values on tota! comprehensive Income for the year:

2018 2017

EUR EUR
Effective of 10% increase in fair value of the Investment in the
Subsidiaries 17,496,635 17,794,041
Effective of 10% decrease in fair value of the investment In the
Subsidlaries e (17496,635)  (17,794,041)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

9.1 Financlisl risk factors (continued)

(b) Currency risk
The Subslidiaries in which the Fund Invests pays loan interest In Pound Steriing (“GBP"), Danish Krone
("DKK™), and Euro ("EUR"). The Fund monitors Its forelgn exchange exposures using Its near term and
long-term cash flow forecasts. The Fund's policy Is not to use forelgn exchange hedging. The Fund's
assets and llablities denominated In GBP, DKK, and EUR at their canying amounts In EUR are
summarised below:

31 December 31 Decamber 31 December 31 Decamber

2018 2018 2018 2018
GBP DKK EUR Total
Total assets and labllitles 128,973,611 14 958 887 43,085,978 187,018,475
Sensitivity hased on 5% 747 544 2,154,299

This sensltlvity analysis represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the
foreign exchange rates, having regard to historical volatllity of those rates.

31 Decamber 31 December 31 December 31 December

2017 2017 2017 2017
i GBP DKK EUR Total
Total assets and llabliities 134,556,870 14,297,480 39,452,531 188,306,880
Senstivity bases on 5% - 714.8/4 1,572,627

This sensitivity analysls represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible shift In the
foreign exchange rates, having regard to historical volatility of those rates.

As at 31 December 2018, the foreign currency exchange rates were EUR/GBP 0.9000 and DKK/GBP
0.1170 (2017: EUR/GBP 0.8800 and DKK/GBF 0.1192).

(c) Interest rete risk

The Fund has an Indirect exposure to changes In interest rates through Its Investment In project
companles, which are In part financed by senlor debt. Senlor debt financing of project companies Is
generally either through floating rate or fixed Interest rate debt. Where senior debt Is financed through
floating rate gebt, the projeds typicelly have concession length hedging arrangements In place, which
are monitored by the project companies’ managers, finance partles and boards of directors.

The Fund, through Its Subsldiaries Invests in subordinated loan notes (subordinate to sentor debt) of
project companles, with fixed interest rate coupons. The portfolio’s cash flows are continually monttored
and re-forecast both over the near future and the long-term (over the whole perlod of projects’
concesslons) to analyse the cash flow retums from Investments.

Interest rate Hsk arises from the effects of fluctuations In the prevalling levels of market interest rates on
the falr vatue of finanda! assets and liabllities and future cash flows. The Fund holds debt securities that
expose the Fund to falr value Interest rate risk. The Fund's policy requires the Investment Manager to
manage this risk by reviewing Auctuations of the [nterest rate sensitivity gap of financlal assets and
lizbilitles on a quarterly basls and the Investment Manager of the Furk to review on a quarterly basls.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

9.1 Financlal risk factors (continted)

(d} Inflation risk

The Fund's project companles are generally structured sa that contractual income and costs are elther
wholly or partially linked to spedfic inflation, where possible, to minimise the risks of a mismatch
between Income and costs due t¢ movements In inflation Indexes. The Fund's overall cash flows are
estimated to partally vary with inflalfon. The effect of these inflation changes do not always Immediately
flow through to the Fund's cash flows as there is a time lag due to project companles finandal models
only being updated on a § monthly basis.

9.1.2 Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk that a counterparty of the Fund will be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment
that It has entered Into with the Fund, The Fund has Invested In the Subsidiaries, Al II Ltd and Al I1
Europe Ltd. The Fund's near term cash flow forecasts are used to monitor the timing of cash recelpts
from project countsrparties. Underiving the cash fiow forecasts are project companies® cash fiow models,
which are regularly updated by project companies for the purposes of demonstrating the projects' ability
to pay interest and dividends based on a set of detailed assumptons. The Fund's Investments and thelr
Subsidiaries entlies generally recelve revenue from government departments, public sector or kocal
authority dients. Therefore 2 significant portion of the Fund's revenue arises from counterparties of good
financial standing.

The Fund Is aiso rellant on the projects' subcontractors continuing to perform their service dellvery
obllgations such that revanues to projects are not disrupbted. The Fund has a subcontractor counterparty
monitoring procedure In place, The credit standing of subcontractors Is reviewed and the risk of default
estimated for each significant counterparty position. Monitoring is ongolng and period end positions are
reported to the Investment Manager on a quarterty basls.

No classes within loans and recelvables or trade and other receivables contain Impaired assets. The
maximum exposure to aedit risk over fnanclal assets is the carrylng value of those assets in the
Statement of Financlal Positton and as set out below:

2018 2017

EUR EUR
Investments In Subsidlaries - debt securities 112,584,557 114,551,727
Recelvables 12,189,285 10,585,900
Cash and cash equivalents 112,843 97,696
Total 124,886,685 125,235,323

The main concentration of aredit risk to which the Fund is exposed arises from the Fund's Investments in
the debt securltles component of the Fund's finandal assets carrled at fair value, The maximum exposure
to credit risk as a result of counterparty defauit equates to the current carrying value of these financial
assets. However, this risk Is spread over 3 debt securities,

Cash transactions are limited to Barclays Bank which is a subsidlary of a finandal Institution with a long
term debt credlt rating of A (2017: Barclays bank, A-), as rated by the rating agency, Standard & Poor's.
All debt Investments represent private debt investments executed in accordance with the investment
objective of the Fund.

In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Fund's credit risk exposure
on a monthly basls, and the General Partner re\:;ifws it on a quarterly basis.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

9.1 Finandial risk factors (continued)

9.1.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidtty risk Is the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its inanclal obligations as they fall due.
The Fund's approach to managing lquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have suffident
finandal resources and liquidity to meet its labllities when due. The Fund's activity is financed by long-
term funding, as It Is closed ended and hence the Limited Partners do not have the option to redeem
thelr investment in the Fund. The Fund Is exposed to limited liquidity risk. The management of iiquidity
risk is delegated to the Investment Manager.

The Fund's Investments are In private companles In which there is no listed market and, therefore, such
investrnent would take time to realise and there Is ne assurance that the valuations placed on the
investments would be achleved from any such sale process.

The Fund's investment companies have borrowings which rank senlor to the Fund's own Investments In
these project companies. The senior debt is structured such that, under normal operating conditions, K
will be repald within the expected jife of the projects. Debt raised by the investment companles from
third parties Is without recourse to the Fund.

The Fund manages Its liquidity risk by a combinaton of (i) contractual uncalied commithed capital, which
can be called with 14 days notice and used to fund Investments and pay General Partner's Shares and (it)
maintaining cash levels to fund short term operating expenses. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
amount of undrawn commitments was EUR4,052,453.

The Fund operates as an investment structure whereby the Fund invests and commits to Invest into
various portfolic companies. As at 31 December 2018, there were no outstanding capital commitment
obllgations with respect to specific portfollo company acquisitions and no amounts due to the portfollo
companles for unsettied purchases.

The foliowlng table lllustrates the expected liquidity of assets held and undrawn capttal commitments:

Undrawn capital Less than 1 1-12 More than 12

As at 31 Decamber 2018 commitments month months months
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Total assets drawn and
undrawn capital
commitments 4,052 453 112,843 12 189,285 174,966,353
As at 31 December 2017
Total assets drawn and
undrawn caplital
commitments 4,052 453 97,696 10,585,900 177,940,412

The amounts In the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabllitles into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. At present the Fund has no immediate plans to exit any of its
positions In its portfolio of Investments. When the General Partner Is of the view that the disposal of
certain investments is relatively certain; the assoclated net assets attributable to the partners, In so far
as they may be distributed, will be disclosed In the appropiate liquidity category as noted below.
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9.1 Financlal risk factors (continued)

9.1.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

lLessthanl Betwaenl Morethan3
On demand year and 3 years years Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
As at 31
Daecember
2018
Liabliities
Payables and accruals - 250,006 - 250,006
Net assets attributable
- - - 8,47 187,018,47
to the Limited Partners 187,018,475 87,018,475
- 250,006 - 187,018 475 187 268 481
Lessthanl Betweenl More than 3
On demand year and 3 years years Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
As at 31
December
2017
Liabilitles
Payables and accruels - 317,128 - 317,128
Net assets attributable
to the Limited Partmers - - - 168,306,880 188,306,880
_ - 317.128 - 188 306,880 188 624,008
9.2 Capital risk management

The caplital structure of the Fund conslists of partners’ capital and partners' current acoounts.

The General Partner's polity when managing capital Is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a golng
concern In order to provide returns for the Umilted Partners and to sustaln the future development of the
business. In order to malntaln or adjust the capital structure, the Fund may call undrawn capttal from the
Umited Partniers or ralse medium/iong-term third party debt, Nefther the Fund nor its Subsidlaries are subject

to externally Imposed capltai requirements.,

There were no changes In the Fund's approach to capital management during the year.
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9. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
9.3 Falr value estimation

As at 31 December 2018, 100% (2017: 100%) of financial assets at falr value through profit or loss comprise
of the investment In the Subsidiarles that has been falr valued in accordance with the polides set out above.
Neither the Subsidiarles nor the Subsidlaries undertying investments are publicly traded; prior to maturity, an
exit can only be made by the Subsldlarles through a sale of Its Investment and commitment In the undertying
Investments through a secondary market. As set out In the LPA, the Fund’s objective s to acquire investments
with the Intention to recover the capltal invested through distributions received from the Subsldiaries funded
through their realisation of thelr equity, debt or infrastructure Investment posltions. As a result, the camying
value of the Subsidlaries may be significantly different from the value ulimately realised on an exit via a
secondary market sale. It is not the objective nor intention of the Fund to exit the Subsidlaries In a secondary
market sale.

As the Subsidiaries zre not traded on an active market, and its fair values are determined using valuation
techniques, the value Is primarlly based on the latest available flnancial statements of the Subsidiaries as
reported by the Administrator of the Subsidiaries. The Subsidiaries financial statements have been prepared
based on the valuation of the Subsldiaries own underlying Investments. The Fund and and ts Subsidiaries have
effectively used the income approach which discounts the expected cash flows attributable to each asset at an
appropriate rate to amve at fair values. In determining the discount rate, regard Is had to relevant long-term
government bond ylelds, the spedfic Hsks of each Investment and the evidence of recent transactions.

Fair vaiue hierarchy

The fair value hlerarchy consists of the foilowing three levels:
. Level 1. unadjusted quoted prices In active markets for Identical assets or liabllities;
] Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
[iability, edther directly or indirectly;
. Level 3: inputs for the asset or llabllity that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

The level in the falr value hierarchy within which the falr value measurement Is categorised In Its entlrety Is
determined on the basls of the lowest level Input that Is significant to the falr value measurement In ks
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an Input Is assessed against the falr value measurement In its
entirety. If a falr vajue measurement uses observable Inputs that reguire significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular
Input to the falr valua measurement in Its entirety requires judgement, considering factors spedfic to the asset
or llabllity.
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9.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

9.3 Falr value sstimation (continued)

The determination of what constitutes “observable' Input requires significant judgement by the Fund. The Fund
considers ¢bservable data to be that market data that is readily avallable, regularly distributed or updated,
reliable and veriflable, not proprietary, and provided by Independent sources that are actively involved in the
relevant market. '

The fallowing table analyses, within the fair value hierarchy, the Fund's investrents measured at falr value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
EUR EUR EUR
As at 31 Decembaer 2018
Finandal assets at falr value through profit or loss - - 174,966,353
As at 31 December 2017
Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss - - 177,540,412

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year, Reconclliations of Level 3 balances are
disdesad in the relevant notes as Indicated below. The effect of different economic assumptions on the fair
value of the Level 3 assets is disclosed In this note.

Level 3 Is comprised of the investment In the Subsidiaries held by the Fund that Is not quoted on an active
market.

Valuation — the Subsidlaries

In determining the fair value of the Subsldiarles, the Fund relles on the valuation as reported in the latest
avallable finandal statements and the undetlying valuations of the Investment portfolio.

The following summarises the valuation techniques and input used for investment in the Subsidiaries
categorised In Level 3 as at 31 December 2018 and 2017,

Fair value Valuation Slignificant Range of
EUR technique unohservable discount rate
Input applied
As at 31. Dacember 2018
Investment in Subsidiaries 174,966,353  Discounted Discount rate  6.75% to 7.00%
cash flow

Reasonable possihie shift Change In

(absolute value) valuation
EUR
Investment in Subsidiaries 5% movement In dlscount rate 5,348,236
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9. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
9.3 Falr value astimation {continued)

Falrvalue  Valuation Significant Range of

EUR technique unobservable discount rate
input applied
As at 31 December 2017
Investment In Subsidiares 177,940,412 Discourted Discount rate  6.75% to 7.00%
cash flow

Reasonable possible shift Change In

(ubsolute value) valuation
EUR
Investment In Subsldlares 5% movement In discount rate 5,615,477

The change In valuation disclosed In the above table shows the direction a decrease In the respedive Input
variable would have on the valuation resuit. For the Investment In the Subsldiaries, deareases In cost of capital
would lead to an Increase In estimated value,

No Interrelationships between unobservable Input used In the Fund's valuation of lts Level 3 Investment In the
Subsidiaries have been Identified.

The Fund has recognised unreallsed losses of EUR2,974,059 (2017: EURS,146,394) on Its Level 2 Investments,
these are Included In the statement of comprehensive income as net ¢hanges In falr value of finandal assets
through profit or loss.

9.4 Transfers betweon levels of the fair value hlerarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occcurred at the beglinning of the
reporting perlod. There were no such transfers In the current reporting period.

10. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The General Partner makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumpticns that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are outiined
below.

Financlal assels at felr value through profit or lass

Jidgements

By virtue of the Fund’s status as an Investment entity and the exemption provided by IAS 28 and IFRS 11 as
well as the adoption of Investrent Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27), investments are
designated upon Inltlal recognition to be accounted for at falr value through profit or loss.
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10. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimates

The Fund recognises the Investment In Its directly owned Subsidiaries at fair value which Includes the falr value
of each of the Individual project companies and holding companies In which the Company holds an Indirect
Investment. Falr values for those Investments for which a market quote Is not avallable are determined using
the Income approach which discounts the expected cash flows at the appropriate rete. In determining the
discount rete, regard Is had to relevant long-term govermnment bond ylelds, spedfic risks and the evidence of
recent transzctions. The General Pariner has satisfied Itself that PFI/PPP or simllar Investments share the same
Investment characteristics and as such constitute a single asset dass for IFRS 7 disclosure purposes.

The range of discount rates applied in the December 2018 valuation was 6.75%-7.00% (2017: 6.75%-7.00%).
The discount rate Is considered one of the most significant unobservable Inputs through which an Increase or
decrease would have a materlal Impact on the fair value of the financlal assets at falr value through profit or
ioss.

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

At 31 December 201B, the Fund held the followlng classes of financlal instruments that are measured at fair
value. For all other assets and Rabilitles, thelr carrying value approximates to fair value,

Finandal Designated at

assels at fair valua
amortised through profit
cost orloss Total
EUR EUR EUR
As at 31 Decamber 2018
Assets
Investment In subsldiaries - 174,966,353 174,966,353
Recelvables 12,189,285 - 12,189,285
Cash and cash equivelents 112,843 - 112,843
12,302,128 174,966,353 187,268,481
Financial Designated at
assets at falr valua
amortised through profit
cost or loss Totzl
EUR EUR EUR
As at 31 Decamber 2017
Assets
Investment In subs!diaries - 177,940,412 177,940,412
Recelvables 10,585,900 - 10,585,900
Cash and cash equivalents 97,696 - 97 696

10,683,596 177,940,412 188,624,008
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11, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Other
financial  Designated at
liabilitias at fair value
amortised through profit

cost or loss Total
EUR EUR EUR
As at 31 December 2018
Liabilitles
Payables and accruals 250,006 - 250,006
250,006 - 250,006
Other Liablitties at Total
EUR EUR EUR
As at 31 Decembaear 2017
Liabiilties
Payables and accruals 317,128 - 317,128
317,128 . 317,128

12. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Partles are considered to be related If one party has the abllity to control the other party or exerclse significant
Influence over the cther party In making finandal or operational dedsions.

The General Pariner Is entiled to receive a General Partner's Share equivalent to a certzln percentage per
annum of net asset value of all underlying investments that are not reslised, as at period end, for managing

the affalrs of the Fund. General Partner's Shares of EUR740,092 were charged by the General Partner during
the year (2017: EUR729,580), and EUR184,326 remalned outstanding at the year end (2017: EUR186,479).

Inter entity recelvable and payables are disclosed in note 7 and 8.

13. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING

The Directors of the General Partner do not conslder there to be any one ultimate controlling party.
14. UNDRAWN COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018 the Fund had undrawn commitments of EUR4,052,453 (2017: EUR4,052,453),
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15, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated the Impact of all subsequent events on the Fund occuring between the end of the
reporting period and 28 March 2019, the date the financial statements were avallable to be Issued and has

determined the following:

There were no significant subsequent everts to report at the date of signing this report and the audited
financial statements.

Brexdt

Recent and ongoing developments around the Brextt process means there is continued political uncertalnty
over the imetable and terms on which the United Kingdom will leave the European Unlon. The appointed
Investment Manager Is a2 global irvestment manager that has been planning for a range of scenarlos under
which the United Kingdom could eventually leave the European Union - incuding the possibility of ieaving
without a deal - and the Investment Manager has put In place measures to mitigate the impacts on its
customers, dlents and operatlons. The General Partner In conjunction with the Investment Manager will
continue to follow developments closely and assess their Implications in relation to their contingency planning.
The General Partner's priority Is to ensure, whatever the drcumstances of the United Kingdam's exit from the
European Union, the Investment Manager Is sultzbly placed to support the Fund.



